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Chairman’s Statement FFEHEE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of United Metals
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“United Metals” or the “Group”) for the year ending 31st December,
2007.

In 2007, the global die casting market showed slight growth, while
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") market expanded much
more significantly as a result of relocation of production bases
abroad to the PRC. Market challenges began to arise amid the
gradual slowdown of the global economy. Competition was keen and
the price of raw materials increased that made the business more
difficult. Signs of possible consolidation of the industry also emerged
which lead to strong players driving out the weak and impacting
more intense market competition. In the face of the challenges, the
Group, as a leading vertically-integrated die caster of the global
market, continued to leverage on its solid experience and expertise
and implemented a series of initiatives to maintain its sound business
foundation, capture growth opportunities and stay ahead.

For the year ending 31st December, 2007, the Group recorded
HK$234,919,000 in revenue, a 3.3% drop compared to that of the
previous year. The decrease was due mainly to the shortfull of mould
development revenue. As a result of a surge in the cost of material
consumed and staff wages, as well as the provision for the Group's
production plant project in Shanghai, a net loss of HK$4,356,000 was
posted. Nonetheless, the Group still reported double-digit gross profit
margin, standing at 10.8% (2006: 16.8%). Loss per share was HK2.0
cents.

During the year, the Group invested on a new equipment that
effectively enhanced its production efficiency and capacity. Cost-
control measures were also implemented to adapt to external
changes. Amid more fierce market competition and rising oil prices,
the Group was unable to raise its product prices. However, it actively
looked for alternative forms of energy and sought to link product
prices with the cost of energy. With more than 50 domestic and
internationally-renowned clients in its customer portfolio, the Group
managed to maintain strong relationship with each of them, as
indicated by a growth in the number of orders from both new and
existing clients. The Group also secured several new contracts with
a number of clients in the automotive industry and the industrial
product sector, as part of the Group’s strategy to broaden its client
base.
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Chairman’s Statement E/F#H&E = (continued )

The Group has firmly cemented its leading market position in the
PRC. Its achievements have been widely acknowledged, not the least
by the award of a High and New Technology Enterprise Certificate
in 2007 given by the government of Guangdong Province, the PRC,
in recognition of the Group’s works and product development.
The Group was also accredited with TS16949, an integral part of
United Metals’ automotive quality system, by external auditor SGS.
The accreditation not only reinforces customers’ confidence in the
Group’s performance, but also enables United Metals to tap business
opportunities in the automotive industry.

With such a solid position and excellent reputation in the industry, as
well as its solid business foundation built up over the years, United
Metals is confident in its ability to overcome challenges and deal with
possible adjustment to the market and consolidation in the industry in
the near future. The global economic downturn may intensify market
competition, but the Group will further strengthen itself and execute
a range of elaborate and prudent business plans in the coming year.
We will enlarge our product portfolio, diversify the product range,
refine our service quality and production technology, maintain strong
rapport with existing clients and explore business opportunities with
new customers. All these will be in line with United Metals’ role as a
leading vertically-integrated die caster of the global market, as well
as an indispensable die casting partner of domestic and international
manufacturers in the PRC.

The Group owes much of its success to its supportive shareholders,
dedicated staff, loyal customers and trusted suppliers. On behalf
of United Metals, | would like to express my deepest gratitude to
all stakeholders for their invaluable contribution to the continuous
growth of the Group. Thank you.

Tsang Chiu Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 3rd April, 2008
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INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

In 2007, the global die casting market showed slight growth. In
comparison, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") market
expanded much more significantly as a result of relocation of
production bases abroad to the PRC.

With the slowdown of the global economy, in the year of 2008 the
demand for commodities is likely to go down, thus directly driving
down the demand for components. It is expected that consolidation
will take place in the industry, while some weak players in the market
will be driven out by the strong ones in the near future. In other
words, competition is set to become more intense.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group’s revenue
dropped 3.3% to HK$234,919,000 from the previous year. The
decrease was due mainly to the shortfall of mould development
revenue. A net loss of HK$4,356,000 was recorded as a result of a
surge in the costs of material consumed and staff wages, as well as
the impairment loss recognised for the Shanghai project. The gross
profit margin was 10.8% (2006: 16.8%).

In terms of the revenue breakdown by product, aluminium alloy die
casting components remained the core revenue contributor to the
Group, accounting for approximately 91.1%. Zinc and magnesium
alloy die casting components contributed 7.8% and 1.1%,
respectively.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

As a globally renowned, fully vertically integrated, PRC-based die
caster catering to both domestic and overseas customers, United
Metals undertook a series of business initiatives in the fiscal year of
2007. The initiatives will not only enable the Group to fully capture
opportunities arising from the consistently increasing global demand
for die casting products, but will also broaden United Metals’ business
scope.

During the year, the Group focused on enhancing production capacity
and the service standard of its factories, with a view to further
strengthening rapport with customers.
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Management Discussion & Analysis &2 & 515 K& DT (continued )

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (oniinveq)

Production capacity

Dongguan factory

In 2007, the Group’s annual production capacity amounted to 3,300
tons, a decrease of 370 tons from 3,669 tons in the previous year.
The drop was prompted by the integration of the Group’s production
facilities as well as customers’ growing needs for more value added-
oriented services.

The Group’s annual production capacity in Dongguan plant was
approximately 4,500 tons, with the utilization rate standing at 75%.
An additional investment of HK$12,088,000 was made for the
purchase and renewal of production equipment, including advanced
die casting machines, processing machines as well as testing
equipment. As a result, productivity was further enhanced, with the
production capacity increased by approximately 5%.

In the second half of the year, the Group was accredited with
TS16949, an integral part of United Metals’ automotive quality
system, by external auditor SGS. The accreditation not only reinforces
customers’ confidence in the Group’s products, but also enables
United Metals to tap business opportunities in the automotive
industry. Additionally, the Group received from the Government of
Guangdong Province, the PRC a High and New Technology Enterprise
Certificate in recognition of its works and product quality.

Shanghai production plant

Construction work of the Group’s factory in Shanghai has been
stalled for no reason by the contractor. The Group has taken the case
to court and a verdict is pending. As such, the date of completion
of the Shanghai project will be later than scheduled. Because the
construction has been put on hold for a prolonged period of time,
impairment loss was recognised on part of the production equipment
and facilities. So far, a total of HK$36,191,000 has been invested in
the project, excluding an investment provision of HK$7,337,000.
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ISCUSSI [ 'AE? 5 =B XD HT (continued =)
Management Discussion & Analysis &I Extim AT

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (ontinued)

Production capacity (continued)

Stringent cost control measures

United Metals regularly undertakes improvement projects that enable
the diligent implementation of a variety of cost-control measures. The
progress is closely monitored by the senior management to ensure the
Group’s cost effectiveness is maximized across the board.

During the year, market competition was intense and the high oil
prices also had material impact on the Group’s gross profit. Besides,
the Group was unable to raise the price of its products as expected.
In a bid to effectively control cost, the Group actively looked at other
forms of energy supply, such as natural gas or heavy oil. The Group
also discussed with its clients the possibility of linking product prices
with the cost of energy. Another way to rein in the cost was to jointly
develop new designs or raw materials with suppliers.

Strong relations with clients

With over 50 clients at present, the Group’s customer base spans
numerous regions around the world. European and American markets
accounted for 26.7% and 33.9% respectively of the Group’s total
turnover.

During the year, the Group signed up 4 new clients, three of whom
from the mainland and one from overseas.

We maintained strong rapport with our new and existing customers
and secured increasing orders during the year. The Group is
relentlessly pursuing the strategy of enlarging the customer base, in
terms of both the number of clients and the sectors they represent.
To this end, several new contracts were secured with clients in the
automotive industry and industrial products.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In the coming year, we will remain committed to consolidating United
Metals’ leading market position while taking a series of positive
initiatives to further strengthen the Group.

We will continue to enlarge the Group’s product portfolio, diversify
the product range, and refine our service quality, in order to cater to
customers’ needs for one-stop shop services.

In the face of the increasingly keen market competition, the
Group will strive to stay ahead by engaging more heavily in hi-
tech production, upgrading the production process, and adopting a
cutting-edge digital management system. These measures will help
cement the Group’s position as a leading vertically-integrated die
caster, and enable it to promptly adapt to market changes.
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Management Discussion & Analysis &I Extim AT

FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

To solidify our operation foundation, we will work conscientiously
on both the internal and external fronts. Internally, we will actively
nurture talent and equip our employees with substantial skills.
Externally, we will continue to maintain strong rapport with our
clients while being constantly on the lookout for potential clients who
can help boost our profitability.

Looking ahead, possible adjustment to the market and consolidation
in the industry, brought by the gradual economic downturn, may
intensify competition and spell uncertainty for some industry players.
Nonetheless, with the Group’s solid business foundation built up over
the years, and its well-designed and prudent plans for the future,
United Metals is confident in its ability to gird up for future challenges
and to maintain its role as a leading vertically-integrated die caster of
the global market, as well as an indispensable die casting partner of
domestic and international manufacturers in the PRC.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31st December, 2007, the Group employed approximately
1,906 (2006: 2,349) full-time employees of whom 21 (2006: 19)
were based in Hong Kong, 1,885 (2006: 2,330) were based in the
Group's factories in Dongguan, the PRC. Total staff cost incurred
during the year amounted to approximately HK$58,233,000 (2006:
HK$57,053,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group’s employees are
based on their performance, working experiences and condition
prevailing in the industry. In addition to basic salaries, retirement
schemes and medical schemes, discretionary share options and
performance bonuses to eligible staff are according to the financial
results of the Group and the performance of individual employees.
To raise work quality and management abilities of its employees, the
Group provides job rotation, in-house training and external training
courses to employees.
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Management Discussion & Analysis &2 & 515 K& DT (continued )

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2007, total bank borrowings amounted to
HK$19,334,000 (At 31st December, 2006: HK$31,466,000), of
which HK$19,334,000 (At 31st December, 2006: HK$14,000,000)
would be due within one year and nil (At 31st December, 2006:
HK$17,466,000) would be due after one year. The bank borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"”) and United States
dollars (“USD"), and bear interest at rates calculated with reference
to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"”) and London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus basis.

The Group had a net current assets amounting to HK$66,293,000
(At 31st December, 2006: HK$85,143,000) and a current liabilities
of HK$50,258,000 as at 31st December, 2007 (At 31st December,
2006: HK$45,070,000). Average stock turnover days increased to 72
days as at 31st December, 2007 from 70 days as at 31st December,
2006. Debtors’ turnover days was increase from 78 days as at 31st
December, 2006 to 79 days as at 31st December, 2007.

Capital expenditures on plant, equipment, leasehold improvements
and construction in progress totalled HK$25,762,000 in 2007 (2006:
HK$34,621,000), of which HK$7,323,000 (2006: HK$18,261,000)
was related to the construction cost of the new manufacturing
plant situated in Shanghai, the PRC. Furthermore, HK$29,701,000
(At 31st December, 2006: HK$31,268,000) was committed as at
31st December, 2007 to purchase additional property, plant and
equipment, and the whole amount was contracted for but not
provided in the financial statements.

Net cash from operating activities amounted to HK$20,454,000
(2006: HK$19,065,000). The Group's cash on hand and bank
balances decreased from HK$31,348,000 as at 31st December, 2006
to HK$18,807,000 as at 31st December, 2007. The decrease was
mainly a result of the repayment of bank loan.

Total shareholders’ funds decreased from HK$193,087,000 as at 31st
December, 2006 to HK$189,674,000 as at 31st December, 2007, as a
result of HK$4,356,000 loss incurred for the year.

As at 31st December, 2007, the gearing ratio, in terms of total debts
to total assets, decreased to 0.21 (At 31st December, 2006: 0.25).
The decrease was mainly a result of the repayment of bank loan.

uu.i)]éi& ji’%él}—
RZZEELF+ZA=+—H RITEEL
%EZ%}%M19,334,000E(5§*§?§_\$
AZ=Z+—H8: #%31,466,0007C) @ Hi Bk
19,334,000 L (R ZZEZERF+_A=+—
H : A% 14,000,0007T) R —FAEH - i
TEEE(R_ZEZEXRFT_A=+—8H:
##17,466,0007T ) B R —F & B H - RIT(E
BEAEE(BEE D RET(ET] JIE
R2EEBRTRAERERBIRITEER

BINEEBERGFE -

+
:@

RZZEZLHF+ZA=+—H AEERD
BEFE A 66,293,000 (R -TENE
+ZA=+—H : #H%85143,0007T) K E
B {E B %50,258000L (R NF+=

B=+—H8: ##45,070,0007T) - FHHFE
BEAR _FEEF+_A=T—HZ70X
BNE-_ZETLFE+_A=+—H2Z72X

JEJ&EET)\MZ HEEE—QQ/\¢+ A= +_
H278 KRG mE T+E+A=1+—H
279K o

ZETEFHE - RE HEMEREHA
ERITIRZEARRX & # % %25762,000 7T
(ZZTZTNF: B%34,621,00070) @ &+
#7,323,0007C (ZZEZ X F : #5%18,261,000
TODBENRABREBZHEERE 2 BEK
RNEM- Wi RZEELE+_A=+—
B BAVERMNEEYE BMERRE
"B 29,701,000 (R XNEFE+ A
=+ —H : B#31,268,0007w)  Hi]vZz&
B ARNI MR -

B S L X 2R e F 5 R 20,454,000
TL(ZZEZRE  F#19,0650007T) ° K&
B 2FBERSEBOTESHB ST F+ =
A=+ —B28%31348000 R E - =&
tHF+=Z A =+—Hz#%18,807,000T °
WO EBEHREERITERMY -

MR FANEIEAEKAL356,0005T  WREE
CRERA_ZTERET_A=+—"HZAE
193,087,000 LM E —EE+F+_A="+—
B 2 & #189,674,0007T °

RZZEZ+HF+ZA=1+—H EERAEL
X(f  ERERYEELESE)ME02]
(K:T$R¢+ A=+—8":

ZHREERITERTE -

025)° A



ISCUSSI [ %:T E‘ EH@ TINT (continued 4)
Management Discussion & Analysis &I Extim AT

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the year ended 31st December, 2007.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's income and expenditure of raw materials and
manufacturing cost are mainly denominated in USD, HKD and
Renminbi (“RMB"). Fluctuations of the exchange rates of RMB against
foreign currencies could affect the operating costs of the Group.
Currencies other than RMB were relatively stable during the year, the
Group did not expose to significant foreign exchange risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management will continue to monitor foreign exchange exposure and
will take prudence measures to minimize the currency translation risk.
The Group will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no material significant change in the capital structure
of the Group during the year.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group’s assets for the year ended 31st
December, 2007 (2006: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has given guarantees to banks in respect of general
facilities granted to its subsidiaries. The extent of such facilities
utilized by the subsidiaries at 31st December, 2007 amounted
to approximately HK$19,334,000 (At 31st December, 2006:
HK$31,466,000).
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2007.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) are
collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims to enhancing
the Company'’s value for stakeholders. Roles of the Board include
reviewing and guiding corporate strategies and policies; monitoring
financial and operating performance; ensuring the integrity of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting systems; and setting
appropriate policies in managing risks of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of six members including two
executive directors, one non-executive director and three independent
non-executive directors, whose details are set out on pages 18 and
20. Members of the Board have different professional and industry
experiences and background so as to bring in valuable contributions
and advices for the development of the Group’s business. More than
one-third of the Board is independent non-executive directors with a
qualified accountant among them.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely information
of the Group through management and are able to obtain
independent professional advices on issues whenever deemed
necessary by the directors.

Board members meet regularly to discuss strategies and business
issues, including financial performance of the Group. During the year,
the Board held 4 meetings; and Board members can attend meetings
in person or through electronic communications means in accordance
with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
A record of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings is set out on
page 17.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated in order to reinforce their independence and
accountability. Their respective responsibilities are clearly established
and set out in writing. The Chairman leads the Boards workings
and proceedings, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
implementing the Group’s strategies and policies and for conducting
the Group's businesses.
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Corporate Governance Report 1ZEEVEHE (continued #)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors (“INEDs”), an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all the
directors, all the directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounting department, which is under the supervision of the
qualified accountant of the Company, the directors ensure that the
financial statements of the Group have been properly prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The directors also ensure that the publication of the
accounts of the Group is in a timely manner.

A report of the independent auditors on the Group’s accounts is set
out in this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report 1ZEVEH (continued #)

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound
and effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard
investments of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all
times.

The system of internal controls aims to help achieving the Group’s
business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial information.
However, the design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement in the financial
statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the Year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material
controls in area of financial, operational and compliance controls,
various functions for risks management as well as physical and
information system security.

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives, safeguard
asset against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure proper
maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure
compliance with relevant legislations and regulations.

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and
risk management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and
effective. Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
on difference areas had been submitted to the Audit Committee. It is
noted that there is no significant areas of concern which may affect
the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Board is
satisfied that the Group has fully complied with the code provisions
on internal control as set out in C.2.1 of the CG code.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

Services rendered

FfT 1% 14 AR 75

=T IR 7

Audit services

Non-audit services (i.e. Professional Service)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was first established in December,
2002 and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures
and risk management and maintaining good and independent
communications with the management as well as external auditor of
the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Lee Tho Siem (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Wang Jianguo

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam

Mr. Wong Wing Sing

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of
the Company. Dr. Loke has appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and related financial management expertise as required
under the Listing Rules. None of them is employed by or otherwise
affiliated with former or existing auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year. The minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for noting
and for action by the Board where appropriate. The attendance of
each member is set out on Page 17.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s interim
and annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2007 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control system and made recommendations to the
Board.
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Corporate Governance Report 1ZEVEH (continued #)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s Remuneration Committee was established in
September, 2005 which comprises two independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Lee Tho Siem and Mr. Wang Jianguo and
one Executive Director namely Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor who
chairs the Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their
specific remuneration package for Directors and senior management,
including terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in
kind, pension rights, compensation payments and other long-term
incentive schemes by reference to market conditions, performance of
the Group and the individual and corporate goals and objectives as
set by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year. The
minutes of the Remuneration Committee meetings were tabled to
the Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
The attendance of each member is set out on Page 17. During the
meetings, the committee members discussed the policy for the
remuneration of Executive Directors and senior management, assessed
the performance of Executive and approved the terms of Executive
Directors’ service contracts.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and
all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the
Company'’s bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to receive notice of
and to attend and vote at a general meeting of the Company is
entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote
instead of him. Shareholders who hold not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the annual
general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’ queries.
External auditor shall also be invited to attend the Company’s
annual general meetings and are available to assist the Directors in
addressing queries from shareholders relating to the conduct of the
audit and the preparation and content of their auditor report.
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Corporate Governance Report 1ZEVEH (continued #)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders.
The information provided will not only comply with the different
requirements in force but to provided additional information to
enhancing communications with shareholders and the investment
public. It is part of a continuous communication that encompasses
meetings and announcements to the market as well as periodic
written reports in the form of preliminary announcement of results
and interim and annual reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information of the Group are provided.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD,
AUDIT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEES’
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Wong Wing Sing ERS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai, aged 57, is an executive director and chairman
of the Group since 15th December, 2006. Mr. Tsang started to work
in the metal working industry in Hong Kong in 1981. Mr. Tsang
was a co-founder of the group and joined the Group in 1993. He
is responsible for the strategic planning and development of the
Group. Mr. Tsang graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science Degree in 1974. After completion of his Master
of Business Administration Degree in the University of Windsor,
Canada, in 1977, Mr. Tsang joined an international oil company in
Hong Kong and gained valuable experience in corporate planning and
finance. Mr. Tsang is a member of the North American Die Casting
Association.

Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor, aged 52, is an executive director and
chief executive officer of the Group. Mr. Kong invested in the Group
through Winchase Limited since 1993 and became the executive
director and chief operating officer of the Company in September,
2002 and was redesignated as chief executive officer with effect
from December, 2006. He is responsible for the overall management
of the financial operation and business development functions of
the Group. Mr. Kong graduated from University of Saskatchewan,
Canada in 1980 with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree. Before Mr.
Kong became the executive director and chief operating officer of the
Group, he was the General Manager of InfoChain Express division, an
information technology business unit at Avery Dennison Corporation,
a Fortune 500 US based company, and has over twenty years of
manufacturing management experience. During his past years of
experience, he had successfully deployed several key projects such
as computerization of production system, certification of 1ISO 9001
qualify system, construction of new 150,000 square feet plant facility
and restructuring of a world class manufacturing team. Mr. Kong is a
member of the North American Die Casting Association.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Tho Siem, aged 68, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group. Mr. Lee joined the Group in September, 2002.
Mr. Lee studied at University of Hangzhou from 1957 to 1961. He
subsequently joined Hua Chiao Commercial Ltd. in September, 1963
and was appointed as a Director and Acting General Manager in
2000. Hua Chiao Commercial Ltd. was merged into The Bank of
China (Kong Kong) Limited on 1st October, 2001 and Mr. Lee retired
on 1st December, 2001. Mr. Lee has over forty years of experience in
banking industry and is currently an independent director of Bank of
Ningbo Co. Ltd. Mr. Lee is also a member of Hong Kong Securities
Institute.

Mr. Wang Jianguo, aged 61, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in December,
2002. He graduated from Harbin Engineering Institute and is
an economist. He is currently the executive director of Shanghai
Multi Luck Real Estates Development Limited and Shanghai Urban
Real Estate Development Limited and the chairman of the board
of Shanghai Ding Guo Investment Management Limited. He
was previously the general manager of Xian Shanghai Economic
Coordination Corporation and the deputy general manager of
Shanghai Shenda (Group) Company. Mr. Wang has over twenty years
of experience in property and corporate development and investment.

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 58, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group. Dr. Loke joined the Group in July,
2004. He has over thirty years of experience in accounting and
auditing for private and public companies, financial consultancy and
corporate management. He holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree from University Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from University of South Australia. He is a
Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales; The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also an Associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a
member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He is the Chairman
of MHL Consulting Limited. He serves as an INED of Shandong
Molong Petroleum Machinery Company Limited, New Chinese
Medicine Holdings Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, VoDone Limited,
Wealthmark International (Holdings) Limited, China Fire Safety
Enterprise Group Holdings Limited and Winfair Investment Company
Limited, companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management Z% X &R EEE M (ontinued )

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong Wing Sing, aged 36, is a non-executive director of the
Group. Mr. Wong is a partner of Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum, Solicitors.
He joined the Group in September, 2002 as an independent non-
executive director and was redesignated as a non-executive director
with effect from September, 2004. He has been practising law in
Hong Kong since 1996 and his main areas of practice are corporate,
securities and commercial law. He obtained his Bachelor of Law and
Master of Law degrees from the University of Hong Kong in 1993
and 1997 respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
1996, a solicitor of England and Wales in 1997 and a notary public in
Hong Kong in 2006.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shea Chun Lok, aged 41, is the financial controller of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall financial management of the
Group and the administrative management of the group’s factories.
He holds a Bachelor degree in Business from the Monash University
of Australia. He is also a fellow member of the CPA Australia and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Shea joined the Group in August, 2006. Mr. Shea
is also an independent non-executive director of a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. Shea has been working as the Company Secretary and Qualified
Accountant in various Hong Kong Main Board listed companies for
many years. He has substantial experience as financial controller of
listed companies.

Mr. Lee Yuk Kwan, aged 54, is the general manager of Dongguan
United Metal Products Company Limited. He is responsible for the
overall production, materials control and operations of the factory. He
joined the Group in 1993 and has over ten years senior management
experience in the metal working industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Lee gained extensive training and practical experience in the
metal working, mechanical and structural engineering business.

Mr. Lam Pek Vu, aged 41, is the quality manager of the Group. He
is responsible for the overall quality assurance function of the Group'’s
factories. He joined the Group in April, 1998 and has over 10 years
experience in quality management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Siu Po Sim, Katherine, aged 51, is the company secretary of the
Group. Ms. Siu is a Chartered Secretary, holds a Master's degree in
Business Administration major in Finance and is an Associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She has
over 20 years of professional experience in compliance, corporate
& commercial and company secretarial matters in Hong Kong. She
has started to handle and be responsible for the Group's company
secretarial affairs since May, 2004.
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Directors’ Report EE &&=

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2007 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 29.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31st December, 2007.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$12.1 million
and HK$8.8 million on plant and machinery and construction in
progress, respectively to expand and upgrade its manufacturing
facilities. Further, the Group also recognised an impairment loss on
construction in progress of approximately HK$7.3 million because of
the significant delay in completion date of the new factory premises.

Details of this and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company is set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The amount of the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st December, 2007, calculated in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, was approximately
HK$123.1 million (2006: HK$123.7 million).
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Directors’ Report BEELHREE (continued )

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors
Tsang Chiu Wai
Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor

Non-executive director
Wong Wing Sing

Independent non-executive directors
Lee Tho Siem

Wang Jianguo

Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company's Article of
Association, Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor and Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke
Hoi Lam will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing 1st
December, 2002 which shall continue thereafter until terminated by
either party giving to the other party not less than six months prior
written notice.

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors
and non-executive director is the period from his appointment to the
time of retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ Report BEELHREE (continued )

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31st December, 2007, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive and their associates in the shares and underlying shares

of the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the

register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Name of director

Capacity

EEHA & %

Tsang Chiu Wai, the Chairman
ZHRE(ZE)

Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor, the CEO
TEE(TTBAR)

Notes:

mEESARREE (M)

MEESI R REE (M i)

These securities are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Standard
Beyond Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued
share capital of Standard Beyond Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai.
Accordingly, Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai is deemed to be interested in 54,788,000 shares held
by Standard Beyond Limited under the SFO. Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai is also a director of
Standard Beyond Limited.

These securities are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Absolute Above
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued share
capital of Absolute Above Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor.
Accordingly, Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor is deemed to be interested in 33,181,000
shares held by Absolute Above Limited under the SFO. Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor is
also a director of Absolute Above Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives nor

their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its

associated corporations as at 31st December, 2007.

Held by controlled corporation (Note i)

Held by controlled corporation (Note ii)
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Directors’ Report EE &M EE (continued 1)

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. No option
has been granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of , the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st December, 2007, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than as disclosed under the section headed
"DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES”, the following shareholder had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Name of shareholder
BREEA

Capacity
5

Held by controlled corporation (Note)
MEEGRAEER (M)

Thomas Lau, Luen-hung

3808

Note: These securities are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Shine Top
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued share
capital of Shine Top Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, Luen-hung.
Accordingly, Mr. Thomas Lau, Luen-hung is deemed to be interested in 69,468,000

shares held by Shine Top Limited under the SFO.
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Directors’ Report EE &M EE (continued 1)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2007.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed shares.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

None of the directors of the Company or their respective associates
have any interests in a business which competes or may compete with
the business of the Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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Directors’ Report EE &M EE (continued 1)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31st December, 2007.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Tsang Chiu Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 3rd April, 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report By ZERHREE

Deloitte.
=Z)

TO THE MEMBERS OF UNITED METALS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of United Metals
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 29 to 79 which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December, 2007 and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report J&7 1% 2kEh s

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2007 and
of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
3rd April, 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement #&Z&8kE*

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZ - ZZE+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

—ETtE -z

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB

Revenue g 242,831
Cost of sales 5 € BN (202,042)
Gross profit e 25,281 40,789
Other income Hit e A 1,544 705
Selling and distribution expenses HERDBERX (7,975) (9,986)
Administrative expenses THAX (14,389) (13,641)

Impairment loss on property, ME - BERH

plant and equipment REEE (7,337) —
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE - (685)
Finance costs BE AR (1,373) (1,367)
Other expenses H X (145) (1,645)
(Loss) profit before taxation BRI AT (B 18) & H (4,394) 14,170
Income tax credit (expense) FEREe (FAX) 38 (754)
(Loss) profit for the year FREE) &M m 13,416
(Loss) earnings per share — basic Bk(EE) BN -EX 1 (HK2.0 centsi# fl) EEELCRRESA




Consolidated Balance Sheet L& &EAE

0 At 31st December, 2007 R-—ZEZE+F+-_A=+—H
e
Em
=z
9 5 2007 2006
p —EFLE  —TTA
2 NOTES HK$"000 HK$'000
wn iE . -t — A _
T M 5 BET T BT I
()
=
5 Non-current assets ERBEE
= Property, plant and equipment mME  BEREZE 12 N ERLY S 111,932
=) Prepaid lease payments A ERIER 13 6,153 6,285
Goodwill g 14 = _
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 15 1,483 1,438
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEE - WE NKRE
plant and equipment EffZEl & 16 3,249 6,738
126,393
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 40,983 41,328
Trade and other receivables JEUWE 5Bk 3k & H b B UL
and prepayments SRIEA R FB R FRIE 18 55,745 57,404
Prepaid lease payments BANHEERE 13 133 133
Investments held for trading BIEEEKRE 19 543 —
Taxation recoverable A Uy (2] % IR 340 —
Bank balances and cash RITEH LIRS 20 18,807 31,348
130,213
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables FERT B 5 BRI H B
and accruals SR K EEF R K 21 30,840 30,680
Taxation payable FE A B 18 84 390
Unsecured bank loans EIMFIETER
— due within one year — —F R H 22 19,334 14,000
45,070
Net current assets REBEEFE 85,143
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERTBERE 211,536
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Unsecured bank loans EIMFIRETER
— due after one year —— &3 H 22 17,466
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIEAGE 23 983
18,449
Net assets EEFE 189,674 193,087
Capital and reserves BRARFEE
Share capital & 7R 24 2,200 2,200
Reserves (& 85 187,474 190,887
Equity attributable to equity holders /NS XSS SRS N
of the Company JEAG HE & 189,674 193,087

The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 79 were approved F29ZE79B VAW B HREER _ZZENF
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 3rd April, 2008 and Pl A=-AKHEETEHERBERL - A Hh

are signed on its behalf by: TIHNEEREREFSEE
Tsang Chiu Wai Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor

ERE LEE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EE




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4R&&EAREE K

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 HE-"ZZ+F+_-_A=+—HILFE 3
™~
o
(@]
o~
Attributable to equity holders of the Company é_
KAAREHEAEL &
Investments Non- ‘_5’
Share revaluation distributable Merger General  Translation Accumulated =
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total <
REEH  FAHIR —fik
B& Bt i B 1 k& abRE HEEE BAfE R £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT BT BETL BETT BETR BETT
(Note Zzl) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25)
(Bi7E25) (Hi3£25)
At 1st January, 2006
2,200 39,352 (114) 16,584 127 6,139 - 111,066 175,354
Exchange differences  BREBNEHELE
arising from translation 2 [E X Z %
of foreign operations — — — — — — 4,265 — 4,265
Gain on fair value changes A/ £ HEKEATE
of available-for-sale g EﬁZLBZ
investment — — 52 — — - — — 52
Income recognised directly B # 7 i A B 72
in equity ZBA — — 52 — — — 4,265 — 4317
Profit for the year EREF - - — - - - 13,416 13,416
Total recognised income £ RE BANNEHE
for the year - - 52 - — — 4,265 13,416 17,733
Transfer E3 — — — — — 455 — (455)
At 31st December, 2006 R -EEE
+ZA=+-H 2,200 39,352 (62) 16,584 127 6,594 4,265 124,027 193,087
Exchange differences  #EiE 7\\%{%?’_{
arising from translation 2 EHZ%
of foreign operations — — — — — - 898 — 898
Gain on fair value changes A/ £ HEREATE
of available-for-sale 2 hm
investment — — 45 — — — — — 45
Income recognised directly B # 7 i A B 72
in equity ZWA — — 45 — — — 898 — 943
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (4,356) (4,356)
Total recognised income 4 W BRERBA
(loss) for the year B g — - 45 - - 898 (4,356) (3413)
Transfer Eii;ﬁ&* — — — — — 408 — (408) -
At 31t December, 2007 R-ZEE L4
+-A=+-8 2,200 39,352 (17) 16,584 127 7,002 5,163 119,263 189,674




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement #&8I&hEXR

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Dividend income
Finance costs
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables
and prepayments
(Increase) decrease in investments held
for trading
Decrease in trade and other payables
and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid on acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Dividends received

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid

New bank loans raised

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED
FORWARD,
represented by bank balances and cash

\/

2007
ZEELHF
HK$'000
BT T
REEH
BRELET (E518) & 7 (4,394)
KAE
mE - BELEERTE 17,294
% = U A (30)
A& R AR 1,373
HEFEER =
ME - -BERSEBZ
B &5 18
A B WA
HEWE  BERSE
pd 2
BEESEYR LR
IE @ N E

AL ()
EU B 5 BR 3% K% H At FE W0 I8
IA R FE A SRIE R A (3 )

BEESIRE (M)
B
ERNESERREAMENKIA
R EE R OB D

ReXBELZHE
BNEBFEH
BN EMEEERBIR

REREXEBZHEFR

REED
REME BEREH (16,812)
WHEME  BEREE
BNz & (3,249)
B B 30
28 236
HEME - BE REE
A8 %08
BERERHZHEFHE (19,795)
MEED
EBERITEX (22,132)

BERFE (1,373)
HESRTER 10,000

xnamensnzazen [ENEEEY

ReRREEEYWOID) B M
FH

RURERREEED
HMEEXEHZHE
ReRBEeSENEYE

RRTHEBIREER

HK$'000
BEF T

14,170

14,547
(30)
1,367
685

(275)
199
30,663
(3,755)
(6,341)
461

(1,379)

19,649
(14)
(570)

19,065

(25,504)
(6,738)

30
275

58

(31,879)

(2,640)
(1,367)
29,406

25,399

12,585

18,134
629

31,348



GENERAL

United Metals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 25th June,
2002 and its shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 6th January, 2003.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") for the convenience of the shareholders,
as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are die casting
and sale of metal products.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the

following new standard, amendment, and interpretations (the “new

HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (the “HKICPA"), which are either effective for the

Group's financial year beginning 1st January, 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior years have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment
has been required.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3& BsshERM T

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

2
E
2 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAMFIREETTETEM
5 HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BHREEDN ([ FHEHBER
= STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued) HEA ) )
gﬂj The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under HKAS AEEDBYMERE S EAE
° 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain information St (BT A) RBEABMBMEERETH
;é presented in prior year under the requirements of HKAS 32 has BTZHERTE - BEBSESFELSE
been removed and the relevant comparative information based on RNHEZHRENBEFERI 2 ETEHR
the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been BEWBEk ERBELERNE IR (B
presented for the first time in the current year. IR RBEAVBRESENEIRBAT
ZEEALBREMERAFEERZS -
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised AEBHAREEAUTEHEM MK
standards or interpretations that have been issued but are not yet ERZ A RGBT R R -
effective.
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements’ BEBGHENE IR 2B RE
(&1&qT)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs' ARG ERFE3H fEERA
(&E3])
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and EREFTENE2IT REREY
Separate Financial Statements? (&158T) iz
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Vesting Conditions and Cancellations' BREPBREEUE2E  BEROREH
CHES
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations? ERMBHREENEF  ERAM
(&E3])
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments' ERUBRELAERSE EEHH
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury B (BERyBRERE BEMBREES
Share Transactions? ZE®)-ZREENR 2R -£ER
EET’HRT\7‘ 73
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements* BFE(ARABRERRE RIS T B
ZEg)-REENY
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes® B (ARMBERERE EPOAEES
ZEE)-RBEH
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a R (ARMBRERE BFAEGHENS 9
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum ZEE)-REZ14R - RERF
Funding Requirements and BEMRE -
their Interaction® REEXHRE R
HiAERE
' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after ' R-ZTZAF—H—-BHAERA
1st January, 2009 A2 FEHBER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 RZZEZNFLA—BAER
1st July, 2009 &2 FEHRE AR o
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 3 RZZTEZTEF=A—HEIUERH
1st March, 2007 M FEMBAER -
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 RZZEZENF-H - B AEH
1st January, 2008 A7 FEEMAMS -
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after > RZZEZNFELA - BHARFH

1st July, 2008 &2 FEHRE AR o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1st July, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control, which will be
accounted for as equity transactions. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new or revised standards
and interpretations will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st January, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations
of another entity for which the agreement date is before 1st
January, 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition of net
assets and operations of another entity after 1st January, 2001,
the Group has discontinued amortisation from 1st January, 2005
onwards, and such goodwill is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit
("CGU") to which the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the
accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st January, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which the
agreement date is on or after 1st January, 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the relevant business at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant CGU, or groups
of CGU, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related

taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group'’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value, using the straight line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#2R 3R MIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—_ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land and buildings under development for
future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for production or for administrative purposes, the
leasehold land component is classified as a prepaid lease payment
and amortised over a straight-line basis over the lease term. During
the construction period, the amortisation charge provided for
the leasehold land is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost,
less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in
the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by management).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part
of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financials statements. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as
a separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs
in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they
are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants related to
depreciable assets are presented as a deduction from the carrying
amount of the relevant asset and are released to income over
the useful lives of the assets. Grants related to expense items are
recognised in the same period as those expenses are charged in the
consolidated income statement and are deducted in reporting the
related expense.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
income statement items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial asset’s at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
consist of financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are neither
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss nor
loans and receivables. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

IMEEMEREEMS BEZESR
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8 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontnuess 3. FEEFBR o)
o Financial instruments (continued) E IR

rf? Impairment of financial assets (continued) THEERE®)
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include: BEAREBHE

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or e EBEHEHALHREARNIMK
)

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or e KREHNIHBXRIZNMNFEFA
)

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy e BHRABFRHEGHENMBE

or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectable, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and unsecured
bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

4.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

Estimated impairment on construction-in-progress/prepaid
lease payments

The construction-in-progress include in the property, plant and
equipment and the relevant prepaid lease payment are regarded
as a single CGU of the Group which represents the new factory
premises under construction in Shanghai, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), engaging in the sole and manufacture of
aluminium die casting parts. Management reviews the recoverability
of the Group’s construction-in-progress and prepaid lease payments
with reference to its intended use and profit generating power
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
Appropriate impairment for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit and loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on construction-in-progress
and prepaid lease payments erected and thereon, the Group takes
into consideration the present value of future cash flow expected to
receive, as well as rights to the use of land (the “Land use right”).
Impairment is recognised based on the higher of estimated future
cash flow and estimated market value. While the Group has paid
the relevant Land use right fees in full, due to general local practice
in the PRC, the Group has not yet obtained formal title to the Land
use right until factory premises are completed on the relevant land.
If the legal dispute as set out in note 12 change significantly that
lead to further delay of the completion of the factory premises,
resulting in a decrease in the recoverable amount of the Land use
right, impairment loss may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 81782k 25 M 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, net of returns and sales related taxes to outsiders during the

year.

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group’s business is currently
organised into four operating divisions which are the basis on which
the Group reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Aluminium parts — sale of aluminium die casting parts
manufactured and processed by the
Group.

Zinc parts — sale of zinc die casting parts
manufactured and processed by
the Group and zinc die casting
parts purchased from suppliers but
processed by the Group.

Magnesium parts — sale of magnesium die casting parts
manufactured and processed by the
Group.

Others — sale of screw machined brass parts
and other casting purchased from
suppliers but processed by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2007

Aluminium
parts
SAER M
HK$'000
BT T
REVENUE g & 214,129
RESULTS ES
Segment results RES
Dividend income from AEHEREZRE
available-for-sale investment A
Interest income F YA

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

nE - BELREZ
HERBE

Unallocated corporate expenses &9 2 2 &1 5 2
Finance costs BMERA
Loss before taxation BREAIE R
Income tax credit MEHES
Loss for the year FRBE
BALANCE SHEET BEARE
ASSETS B
Segment assets NHEE 170,315
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE
Investment held for trading BEEERE
Unallocated corporate assets APEAREE
Consolidated total assets GRAEEEHA
LIABILITIES =8
Segment liabilities ABEE 13,223
Unsecured bank loans ERRARTER
Unallocated corporate liabilites AP E AR EE
Consolidated total liabilities REBEES
OTHER INFORMATION HtE#
Capital additions EmER 20,029
Depreciation of property, nE - BERSEZ
plant and equipment nE 16,430

5. WHERTEE B =)

BE_ZTFLE+_A=+—HLEE

Magnesium
parts Others
gHH

Consolidated
Hith g8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT it e BT

BRI
18,230 2,529 31 234,919

Zinc parts
FEHH

30
236

(7,337)
(768)
(1,373)

(4,394)
38

(4,356)

187,891
1,483
543
50,973

240,890

13,355
19,334
18,527

51,216

25,762

17,294
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INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2006

REVENUE

RESULTS
Segment results

Dividend income from available-

for-sale investment
Interest income
Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Segment assets
Available-for-sale investment
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unsecured bank loans
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

ES
DHEEE

HHEREZ
R BHA

MEBA

ARERARX

AR

W 75 A

FIRHREX

FREMN

BEREE

#E
HHRE

T B RE
RARDARE
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL

nE - BELRE

ZIE

HENE  BER

REBZER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 81782k 25 M 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 HZE —ZTZ

TtF+ZA=+—RHIEFE

Aluminium
parts
7 4
HK$'000
BETT

219,842

15,548

168,169

31,630

13,702

199

5, MERSEBER o

HE-FF
Magnesium

Zinc parts parts
i3 B3
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETR
17,727 4,870
899 329
18,953 3,693
7,231 —
2,991 —
626 219

NE+-_A=+—HLEEE

Others
Hity
HK$'000
BETT

392

89

Consolidated

A
HK$'000
BETT

242,831

16,784

30
275
(1,552)
(1,367)

14,170
(754)

13,416

190,904
1,438
64,264

256,606

26,443
31,466
5,610

63,519

34,621

14,547

199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 81782k 25 M 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL 5.
INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical segments
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods:

The PRC, including Hong Kong FE - BEES
North America =M

Europe M

Others EHAth

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment, analysed by
the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of
segment assets

SHMEERTIE

2007

—FTtHE

HK$'000

A

Geographical region
The PRC s
Hong Kong BB

143,454
44,437

187,891

KEEDBER =

it [ 57 B
REEBIBETIHHD (TRER 2R
Ri) 2 WS AT T

Sales revenue by
geographical market
EMEHSE 2MHEE R E

2007

2006
—EERF
HK$'000
BEF T

—EELHE
HK$'000
BT T

81,250 86,591
79,574 80,235
62,777 56,717
11,318 19,288

REEMEMRE Dz DHEEREE

AEWE - BEMRKERESTWT

Additions to property,
plant and equipment
%¥ > Fﬁf%&%&ﬁldng
2007
—FTLH
HK$'000
EETT

HK$'000
BETT

PER:PL] 34,546
1,833 75

25,762

34,621
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hilg AN

2007 2006
—ETLE —TTAE

HK$’000 HK$°000
EWTRT BT

Hp W AERBRFBEATRIEA

Included in other income are the following:

Dividend income from available-for-sale AIEHEREZ
investment &% B A 30
Net exchange gain P& 5 25 0% 58 400
Interest income F B U A 275
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMERAE

2007 2006
—®TLE C—TTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
E®FT  BETR

ARAFRNTHREEZ

Interest on unsecured bank loans wholly

repayable within five years B RITERFE 846
Interest on loan from a related company —HBEQAERFE 521
8. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 8. Fid#H (&) RHAX

2007

—FTLH
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Current tax: RNEIFLIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBMEH
Current year RNEE 425
Overprovision in previous years WA FEBEEE (12)
413
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hthax# R KA
Current year KEE 296
Overprovision in previous years BEFEHRERE —
296
709
Deferred tax (note 23): RIEFIE (M 7E23) -
Current year RNEE 45
Taxation attributable to the Company and its KA M EWE AR
subsidiaries JEAE B IR 754




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

8.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continueq)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated
assessable profit.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
Dongguan United Metal Products Co., Ltd. 5 22 8 & 71 & #| &
A BR 2~ &l("Dongguan United”), is regarded as a “High and New
Technology enterprise with Foreign Investment”, while United
Castings (Dongguan) Co., td. R = R E & B &l = & B 2 7l
("United Castings”) and United Metal Products (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
R84 B 4% & E)A R 2 7("United Shanghai”) are regarded
as "Enterprise with Foreign Investment established on coastal
economic open zones”, hence, they are levied at a reduced PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate of 24%. Also, all of the subsidiaries are
entitled to exemption from the PRC enterprise income tax for two
years commencing from their first profit-making year of operation
and thereafter, they are entitled to 50% relief from PRC enterprise
income tax for the following three years. The reduced tax rate for
the relief period is 12%.

Dongguan United's first profit-making year is the year of 1999.
Accordingly, tax relief expired in the year of 2003 and the tax rate
in the year of 2004 and thereafter is 24%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Dongguan
United is entitled to a 50% reduction in tax rate in the year of 2007
as over 70% of Dongguan United’s turnover is for export purpose.
Accordingly, the tax rate for the year of 2007 is 12% (2006: 12%).

United Castings’ first profit-making year is the year of 2006.
Accordingly, tax relief will expire in the year of 2010 and the tax
rate thereafter is 25%. No provision for taxation has been made for
United Casting.

No provision for taxation has been made for United Shanghai as the
company had no assessable profit for the year.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law") by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the State Council
of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law.
The New Law and Implementation Regulations will change the tax
rate from 24% to 25% of Dongguan United, United Castings and
United Shanghai from 1st January, 2008 onwards. United Castings
will continue to entitle to 50% relief from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax until 2010 based on the new tax rate of 25%.

8.

Fr&E#H (%) BAXw
BB TS BT R AT R BURE M A
17.5% ML E -

HibAxER 2 HIB T REA B RA#
BRITHEE -

RETFEBBEEIEREZR  R=BHNA
eHmBERAR(RZEN]) BWER
[BHRMEIERELE] MR=
MBEzBHmARAR(TR=MED
EBeBENm(LB)BRAA(H
BLEEDORBRIRERBEERR
BHIERELE ] RERBRRHRE
28% M ZERABBRPBEREMEH
o A B AR & EEEERN
FEEMFHHEERARZAMNPELE
FRASH > XA R HE 1R = F R %250% P
BEEMER REHRIBERELS
12% -

REBNzEaBENFER AN
FoRAl BERLHER_-_TT=F
@ —ETMFERERBEER24% -

BEFEABERRER AR ETHE
MBB7I0% 2 EEFRE LA - WATR
—ET L FEERMPS0%FIE o AL
L FIHRENR(ZTENF
12%) °

REMBLAEAENEER _TTX
FoAY REARRHER_-_F-FF
@ - HIED R R25% © W\ R
WIELTIARE -

MARRE LSRN FRLERRTEN
B LR A AE L TR B E -

RZFZELF=ZA+A  FERED
BEESERT=RBEMHEPERE
BOE(T#BE]D) R_FTTLF+ =
ARNB - PEBEBERRMG T HHEERE
AR RIBHBOENEBRAA - A=
ZEZNF-A—HE R8N Rx
BE R RS D2 B A B XA B 24% 8
BEK% BHE_ZT-—TFERAHE
25% -+ RSB AL B JE R 2 50% T B
DEMER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#2R 3R MIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—_ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

ul
A

8. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (oniinueq) 8.

The tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the income statement as follows:

FrE#fH (%) A3X e
AFEEFRBE(EL) X H T HK IR
REBRFLAT (BB HSFEERAT ¢

2007
=t t 8T

el
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&
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9.

(Loss) profit before taxation

Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate
of 24% (2006: 24%)

R AT (B 18) A 7

HHRECEMERE24%
(ZZ2ZXF : 24%)

HKS$°000 HK$°000
BHFRT BT

SR (1,055) 3,401

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose @ 78 5 i Ug A 2 1 7% 57 2 (557) (2,607)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TAIHHAI oM E

purpose 2,455 691
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised & F ~ R R HER 2 FH & E 1B = (220)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to the ARalBETHBRAIERE

Company’s certain subsidiaries REZZE (1,033) (561)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBMEBEEIRETE 429 168
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E A 5 AR R A &

operating in other jurisdictions MEBARTRBE 28 9 (109)
Overprovision in previous years BEFEBERE (270) (12)
Others Hith (16) 3
Taxation for the year REEHIE m 754

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging:

9. FR(KEE)imF

FAEE) &N EME

—FTLH

2007 2006

—ZEETR

HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT  BETR

Directors’ remuneration (note 10) BEEMS (M5E10) 5,675
Other staff costs Hfb B TR 49,715
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RARAE R ET B4t

(note 31) (P EE31) 1,663
Total staff costs BITKA4EE 57,053
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE ST & FRIE 133
Less: Amount capitalised in construction in B RERIREET

progress =N (133)
Auditor's remuneration 1% SR B & 1,018 628
Cost of inventories recognised as expense ERRABAI ZHEERAN 209,638 202,042
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - MELREZITE 17,294 14,547
Net exchange loss BE 5, 5 18 % HE 685 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERSZEBERE

equipment 199
Operating lease charges on land and buildings T MEFZELEHESER 3,143




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 817 ®%

M—JLEE (continued #)

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—_ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2006: seven)
directors are as follows:

2007

Kong
Cheuk
Luen,
Trevor
I8E
HK$'000
BETT

Lee Tho
Siem
ZE5R
HK$'000
BRI

Tsang Chiu
Wai

LmE
HK$'000
BRI

Directors' fee Bk
Other emoluments <
Salaries and other HMREM
benefits =Rl
Retirement benefit RIREF
scheme BE]
contributions B
Total emoluments Bl & 8% 2,465 2,963

2006

Thomas
Lau,
Luen-

Kong

Cheuk

Tsang Chiu Luen,
Wai Trevor
LRRE LEE
HK$'000  HK$'000 H
BETT AETr B

Directors' fee EE 48 — -
Other emoluments 4
Salaries and other SR EAM
benefits & — 2,342 2,918
Discretionary bonus B IE7E4T ([ 5%)
(Note) 143 — —
Retirement benefit iR /K 7@ 5t 2|
scheme "X
contributions — 12 12
Total emoluments MewsE 191 2,354 2,930

* Mr. Thomas Lau, Luen-hung was resigned on 15th December, 2006.

Note: The discretionary bonus is determined by the board of directors.

10.EZkREME

KRARAMAREB(ZEERF: £8)E
EEECNRENZHEMT

—ePLs

Loke Yu,
alias Loke Wong Wing
Hoi Lam Sing Total
[ i kB At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT #BETz BETT

Wang
Jianguo
TEE
HK$'000
E¥TR

Loke Yu,

Lee Tho Wang alias Loke Wong
Siem Jianguo  Hoilam Wing Sing Total
FHHx IBE  EE®  #Eib A
K$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
WIT BETT BETR BETRT BETR
50 50 50 50 248
— — — — 5,260
— — — — 143
— — — — 24
50 50 50 50 5,675

*REBEE([RIEE D R-_ZTRF+=-A
THHABIE -

MIAT : BB IEAL VR E R QET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continuea)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
two individuals (2006: two individuals) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosure set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining three individuals (2006:

three individuals) were as follows:

10.EEREEME »

RAEENIEESHMALY - HP
MA(ZEERF: WAB)REARAE
2 REIHECNEXEE  Hif=
BALT(ZZZRE: Z2)NME N
™~

2007
—ETtE

HK$’000
BRI

#r B B EL At 4@ A
RAREFIFT &4 R

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit schemes contributions

2007
—_EEtH
No. of
individuals

B8 A%
BEME=NFTHER :

Emoluments of the employees were within the
following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = & % ¥ 1,000,000 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group B < -
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has

waived any emoluments during the year. EEMME -

2006
—EERF
HK$'000
BT T

individuals

BE A

FAAEBABEATANEEXNA AR
SHEMAL(ERESENER) XE
(NI SE I J:0 R
THREBEE TMEEHRERNFAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 81782k 25 M 5T (continued )
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11. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE M"ME8R(EE) R
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share attributable AAFEEBREEASHRERN(EIE)
to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the BRI TRETHEEE -

following data:

2007 2006
—ETLE —TTAE
HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT  BEET

(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)&F

Number of shares in issue for the purpose of AEEREA(BE)BA®N
basic (loss) earnings per share 2T & H 220,000,000 220,000,000

HRFALTEBETENZAEEEE
MENETBR RUE2GREFR
F) o

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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58 For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE_-—ZT+E+-A=+—HIFFE
fo
Eu
Pl 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12.%  BERHZE
ich
E %;E Furniture,
2 z Leasehold Plantand fixtures and
E improvements machinery equipment Motor  Construction
% Buildings BEWE BE i vehicles in progress Total
=) K 35 R#E  RERR RE ERIE GE:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i BETTL BETT BB BB BETT BETTL
CosT BE
At 1st January, 2006 RZZEERE
-A-H 3,554 10,131 119,073 10,080 1,330 4,990 149,158
Exchange realignment ERRE 66 229 3,092 248 26 - 3,661
Additions NE — 1,290 13,587 1,483 — 18,261 34,621
Disposals HE - - (810) - - - (810)
At 31st December, 2006 R/ E
+-A=1-H 3,620 11,650 134,942 11,811 1,356 23,251 186,630
Exchange realignment ERAE 95 125 1,492 357 38 - 2,107
Transfer #z - - 942 - - (942) -
Additions NE — 2,263 12,088 2,589 — 8,822 25,762
Written-offs e — (875) — — - - (875)
At 315t December, 2007 RIZETLE
t-A=1+-H 3,715 13,163 149 464 14,757 1,394 31,131 213,624
DEPRECIATION AND HERHE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January, 2006 RZZZXE
—-A-H 1,855 5329 45,615 5371 1,042 — 59,212
Exchange realignment ELGE 34 121 1,185 132 20 — 1492
Provided for the year EEFE 445 1,755 10,713 1,567 67 - 14,547
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - - (553) - - - (553)
At 315t December, 2006 RZZZ/E
t-A=1+-H 2,334 7,205 56,960 7,070 1,129 — 74,698
Exchange realignment A% 80 116 1,195 291 34 — 1,716
Provided for the year EENE 430 2,885 12,026 1,887 66 - 17,204
Impairment loss recognised M E R AL
in the income statement EFE . - - - - 7,337 7,337
Eliminated on written-offs HEAR - (875) - - - - (875)
At 315t December, 2007 WZZZ+E
+ZR=1-H 2,844 9,331 70,181 9,248 1,229 1337 100,170
CARRYING VALUE EHE
At 315t December, 2007 i 3
TZA=1-H 871 3,832 79,283 5,509 165 23,794 113,454
At 315t December, 2006 RZBEREF
+-A=1-H 1,286 4,445 77,982 4,741 227 23,251 111,932
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For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

12.

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the term of the lease, or 20 years,
whichever is the shorter
Leasehold Over the term of the lease, or 20 years,
improvements whichever is the shorter
Plant and machinery 9%
Furniture, fixtures 18%-25%

and equipment
Motor vehicles 18%—-25%
In respect of the alleged breach of contractual undertakings of
several construction contracts, a subsidiary has been named as
a defendant in a District Court action in the PRC. This resulted
in a significant delay in the completion date of the new factory
premises, the directors of the Company conducted an impairment
review in respect of the Group’s construction in progress. A
number of these assets were determined to be impaired because
of technical obsolescence. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$7,337,000 was recognised during the year.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’'s prepaid lease payments represent payments for
medium-term land use right in the PRC.

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current asset
Non-current asset

Note: The amount had been reduced by a government grant of approximately
HK$8,335,000 in the form of deduction of consideration paid in respect of the
land use right acquired by the Group in a prior year. Details are set out in note

32.

12. % BaEE
BREZETREN Ll - BEKKE
I B Iy iR Er o) B a8 RS Rt R E AR
RSB EE WEHSZFRUTERFE
e -

gx LHREFHK-+F
(A& B%E)

THEWMEEE RHEEFHN - TF
(UABEERE)

B Kt 28 9%

B HE R 18%-25%

B

A E 18%-25%

MRWEERETIREAHNZENAE  —
KB R ARG BT AR H Z F AP K
REEAN - ZEHEHFT IEBEEZ2RTA
HHBAEAEY  ARAEERAERZE

BIRETRERS BTREEEELRE
RFir@ArRmRE B FRAEERBER
18497 % 7,337,000 7T °
13. B HERE

$%l2ﬁﬁmﬁ RIEIE PR B R AL

1 156 PR 4 P AN SRR

EREREZ DN

2007
—FELHF
HK$’000

2006
—EERF
HK$'000
BET T BT T
133
6,285

6,418

6,286

ZE S EBALBE 8,335,000 2 KT

B aE
Bemmd FAARAEEREFH
Wt EREMNRERNE - F1E
AT 32
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13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

Prepaid lease payments are amortised over the term of the land use
right of 50 years on a straight-line basis.

The amount represents the Land use right in the PRC acquired
by the Group. While the Group has paid the full purchase
consideration, the relevant government authorities have not
granted formal title to the Land Right to the Group. In the opinion
of the directors, the absence of formal title to the Land Right does
not impair the value of the relevant properties to the Group. The
directors also believe that formal title to the Land use right will be

granted to the Group in due course.

GOODWILL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 81782k 25 M 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

13. EfTHHEFRIE »
TE & R TE T A B K R 4 b (F R
2 FHISOF BN o

% B E BRAE AN B AT WO R B
-BEAEBECEBEINTEBRE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁilﬁﬁim
BZEAERE -EERA - HARIE

ﬂ%ZEﬁ%%K@%ﬁ$%lﬁ%%
EHBRE - EFHMAE AREERN
BERERER I HEMEZENEE -

14. B E

BT
HK$'000

cosT B A
At 1st January, 2006,31st December, 2006 and R-ZEZF—HA—H —ETERF

31st December, 2007 +ZA=Z=+—BARER=-EZTLHF

TZA=+—H 685

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT 8 R ORE
At 1st January, 2006 RZEERF—H—H —
Impairment loss recognised B SRR B 18 685
At 31st December, 2006 and RZEEZRF+_A=Z+—HRK

31st December, 2007 —EE+F+-_A=+—H 685
CARRYING VALUE R E
At 31st December, 2007 RZZEEZ+LF+=-A=+—H —
At 31st December, 2006 RZEEZRE+=ZA=+—H —

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to two individual CGUs, the zinc parts and magnesium parts
segment. The recoverable amounts of these units have been

determined based on a value in use calculation.

For impairment assessment purpose, cash flow projections covering
a five-year period at a discount rate of 5% is used. Since the
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying value of the goodwill,
the Group recognised a full impairment loss of HK$685,000 on
goodwill for the year ended 31st December, 2006.

BRENANS  AESOREEZMEE
VBReEEBEMHERTRELTED
e REFEM AT KB HEIIZERE
BZAEMEE -

REFNGmE O RERAFHZESR
SR A% 2 B IR EEITIER - R A
WEcEEIEZREAEAK A&E
EREE-FEAF+_A=t+—HL
FEME 22 50 E & 8% %685,000

JT °©
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15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 15. It HEKRE

Available-for-sale investment comprise: AHHERERRE !

2007 2006
—BBEE C—TTRA
HK$'000 HK$'000

EET T BETT

Unlisted investment fund EMHREES m 1,438

As at the balance sheet dates, all available-for-sale investment R#&HH @ FIAAIHEEHREEAFES
is stated at fair value. Fair value of this investment has been R ° ZEREBEZAFEDNELXEHFHa @
determined by reference to the prices quoted by the counterparty MM EIREET ©

financial institution.

16. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 16. WEME - BERRKERE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT tTzZz8l &
The deposits were paid by the Group in connection with the AEBIZFZIT@ D EBRBARS
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for production facilities ZWME - BELRBURAEEER
in the PRC. Additional amounts committed are shown as capital BE o FBANAE © T E M 29 & AR K
commitments in note 29. R -

17. INVENTORIES 17. 7 &

2007 2006
—eBLE —BTR

HKS$°000 HK$000
BEFT  BET

Raw materials 13,156
Work-in-progress pang 14,258 17,365
Finished goods BUAK o 13,569 11,016

40,983 41,328
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For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables FEWE 5 R0
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B mEREE
Other receivables H fth fE UL 3R
Deposits paid =X
Others H A
Prepayments SN/ =

The Group allows a credit period of 60 days to its trade customers.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts at the balance sheet date:

0 to 30 days 0HZ30H
31 to 60 days 31HZ60H
61 to 90 days 61H%Z90H
91 to 120 days 91HZE120H
Over 120 days 120 B

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will understand the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit
sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.

At both balance sheet dates, the directors considered that trade
receivables which are neither past due nor impaired area of good
credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$8,881,000 (2006: HK$8,572,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

18. BN E 5 BR &
ME K ﬁﬁ E

H ft & UX

2007 2006
—EFLH

ZEERF
HK$'000
EE T

HK$'000
BT

51,714

2,345
2,756

5,101
589

55,745 57,404

AEBHETHEESEPORMEE
Bl REEAZREEZRIZIKRER
BRRERAMAOT

2007

—ETtE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT 5 T 5

30,133 24,901
11,979 18,241
5,383 5,463
2,757 1,159
741 1,950

EEMFEP A NEBEK T #E
BEPZEEERIBMEHEARE - K
SERNAEARFERRENEFIELE
RHE RTEFNERARETHRE
% o

PRREFENEER  EFERA B25

HERTFURBZEREZERAAR
WZlEEEER-
E#&HEEI : Elﬁ’]fﬂﬁzf’f%ﬁﬁ K EREE 2

H B HE 8,881,000 (ZEZTRNF ¢
,% “4%8,572,00071) B FE W R IEE E SR 2]
EEDNARAIRREEE -ASEHZF
MRETREEAERY -



18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

BWEFERAEHfhEIW
REWRENRE @
AEEHERFUBREZERE SRA
Z BR#R

2007 2006

ZEELH —EEREF

HK$’000
BRI

HK$'000
BT T

61 to 90 days 61THZ=90H 5,463
91 to 120 days 91THZE120H 1,159
Over 120 days i 120H 1,950
Total st 8,881 8,572

The directors considered trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired are of good credit quality because of satisfactory
settlement received after year end.

Trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

EERA BIHERTUREZEK
EORRABREZEELER  RAR
FREBBRZERSTAME

TXHIANEREBEER 2WEEE U
Sz BETE 2 BIE 5 R R M E e
WA

2007
—ETtf

2006
—EEREF
HK$'000

BT

HK$'000
BETR

Renminbi (“RMB") ARBE(TARK]) 271

us$ e 35,142 35,829
Japanese Yen (“Yen") B (lTAxTl) = 4,662
Euro (“EUR") &t ([BoT]) 1,471 2,843

19. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 19. B EEERE
2007

—FFLH
HK$’000

BT T

2006
ZEERF
HK$'000
BT T

REBERERR

Investments held for trading comprise:

REELTRAE S

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

EREEE ERE 2 A AT R
FEE v

The fair values of the above investments held for trading are
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on the
Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#2R 3R MIEE (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—_ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 4.86%.

Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21.
ACCRUALS

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance
sheet date:

MiTHEBRERES
PABBENT001EFIS6EFE Y
LE LESER

TXHIANEHEEERER ZIEEE N
Sz BEDIEZ IRITHR

2006

— == /\

HK$'000

2007
—EFLH
HK$’000

EET T BT T

BT 8 5 8RR H th g
IR K At R

2006
—EERF
HK$'000
BT T

—ETtH

HK$’000
BRI

Trade payables FEfRTE 5 R

0 to 30 days 0H=30H
31 to 60 days 31THZ60H
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H
91 to 120 days 91THZ=120H
Over 120 days i@ 120H
Other payables H At & 5B
Accruals & 5T R 3K
Deposits received 2WET &

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 60 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are within the credit timeframe.

2,595

4,230

242

132

(:1:] 310
9,866 7,509
17,485 20,023
3,489 3,148
30,840 30,680

BEEMNTHERHRA/60H - K&
EoE—BYBRAMREEHE  BERM
BREMNREBEHEERERRA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#2R 3R MIEE (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 #HZE _—_ZZ+F+_A=+—HItFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21. [EH & 5 BRw & H &
ACCRUALS (continued) IR L BB R R )
Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other TXHEHINANEBREBEER Z2INEEE I
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set I BEINEBEZENE SRR K EME
out below: RFRIA -

2007 2006
“ETLE —FTAE
HK$°000 HK$'000
EHFE  BET

22. UNSECURED BANK LOANS 22, EIRFERITERK

2007 2006
—ETLE -—TTAE

HK$’000 HK$’'000
BRI BETT

The unsecured bank loans are AR T HMEER 2 mE R

repayable as follows: RITER
Within one year —FR 14,000
More than one year, but not Bl —FETBERT

exceeding two years 3,556
More than two years, but not BEMFETBBERT

exceeding five years 13,910

19,334 31,466

Less: Amounts due within one year B ORBAER TS —FA

and shown under current liabilities FER R (19,334) (14,000)

Amounts due after one year —FERIHNEE _ 17,466
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 BA#R 3R BIEE (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 &

ECETLET AT -RLAEE

22. UNSECURED BANK LOANS (continued) 22 EIRWBPITERN o

Bank loans comprise:

HIBOR + 0.45%"
LIBOR + 0.8%"
HIBOR + 1%©@
HIBOR + 1.5%@

Floating-rate borrowings:

ARTIHHEERZEZITER :

Carrying amount

REE

2007 2006
—EBTEE C—TITAF

HK$°000
EET T

HK$'000
BT

HERRITRAEFRE+045E0

(1) Repayable at the end of each interest period. Amount repaid may be redrawn
immediately. The interval of each interest period vary from one to three months.

(2) Both unsecured bank loans were fully repaid during the year.

The average effective interest rate of the Group’s unsecured bank
loans is 5.5% (2006: 4.8%) per annum.

Included in the unsecured bank loans is a bank loan of
US$1,200,000, equivalent to HK$9,334,000 (2006: US$2,500,000,
equivalent to HK$19,406,000) which is denominated in currency
other than functional currency of the relevant group entity.

WBERITRERB+08FD 19,406
BEBBRTRAEFRE+IED 10,000
BBRITRERFRE+1SER 2,060

31,466

(M  ZAREMNEHREME- - BBFEERETR
TANEHER . ZFSHMR MBS
F-—EAAE=M@A -

2 MEEEFRTEFRINFATEEE -

REBEEMBTERZ2ER TS
FEEHFBS5E (ZZEZTRTF : 48
) -

4 3K 18 4R 77 B X8 #51,200,000 = 7T ¢

SR HBE9,334,000T (ZZTZRNEF .
2,500,000 7T 48 %5 7% 19,406,000
L) ZRITER - ZERIBTIAEH
EEEREEEUIINZHMEE
g -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2007 HE_-_ZZ+F+_A=+—HBILFE 67
Sk
N
23. DEFERRED TAX 23. B EFIE 25
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets ERRAZETZEELCHEAFEREENR i—‘:ﬂ
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior RIBIORLNTEFEZZSHHOT - g
years:

Accelerated

tax

depreciation Tax losses Total

JInE %t IH #7 & BBEER a#

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT T BET T BEET T

At 1st January, 2006 RZZZRF—-H—H 2,959 (2,021) 938

(Credited) charged to the RERKZER (GTA)
income statement for the year kR (78) 123 45
At 31st December, 2006 RZBEXRF+ZA=+—H 2,881 (1,898) 983
(Credited) charged to the RERKZER (GFA)

income statement for the year Bl (219) 194 (25)

At 31st December, 2007 R-ZET+E+-A=+—8 2,662 (1,704) 958
At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of REER  AEEBEARYAWBEELD
approximately HK$12,316,000 (2006: HK$11,638,000) available W #12,316,000 L ( —ZEENFE B
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been 11,638,000 7T ) A] A K I8 A 18 /& F ©
recognised in respect of approximately HK$9,734,000 (2006: HREREEBEERR & MNER - BH
HK$10,844,000) of such losses due to future taxable profits are BERSHBERHR 2  ERZEEIE
expected to generate based on the profit projection prepared by the A B 9,734,000 (ZEFT R F B
management. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect #10,844,000 7T ) A IELE R K & E ©
of the remaining tax losses of HK$2,582,000 (2006: HK$794,000) R T EETE R B & & B SRR - 8E 5t
due to the unpredictability of future profits streams. These BN E 1B 82,582,000 (ZEE
unrecognised tax losses will gradually expire from 2009 to 2012. N BWET794,0007T) ERIEER G E

E ZEAERVEEEBEEERZ=ZZZN
ET——FERREE
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0o

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. g A
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Fffi &

(RF=

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Number

of ordinary
shares Amount
2007 & 2006
LEREE

2007 & 2006

—BBLR
=

HK$'000

BT

BREEE¥0.01TH &Rk

Authorised: JATE
At 1st January and 31st December W—A—BKk+=H=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EETHE :

At 1st January and 31st December

25. RESERVES

The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount of
the share premium of the subsidiaries.

The merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to the group reorganisation effected on 13th
December, 2002 (the “Group Reorganisation”).

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
subsidiaries established in the PRC (the "PRC subsidiaries”)
are required to maintain a general reserve fund which is non-
distributable. Appropriations to this reserve fund is made out of
profit for the year of the PRC subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial
statements which are prepared in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in the PRC. The amount and allocation
basis are decided by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries
annually and is not less than 10% of the profit for the year of the
PRC subsidiaries for that year. The general reserve fund can be used
for expanding the capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by means of
capitalisation issue.

W—A—BR+-A=+—A

220,000,000 2,200

25. 15

A7 K 7 8 1E B B A ) A AU s (B AR
ol

EHRFEEABRBENR-_ZZT_F+-A
tT=ZAETzEBEA(EEEAH])
Yo B B B8 2 A AL TED (B 4B RR B K 2 B Bt
REBMBETEROEERZEZHE -

RETFEBEBZEZERRAIIRE £ E
RO BAR(THEKERR]) A
RIL—RFHEED MZREFEHESTD
TANK - ZFEBES BN B P BN
BrrBRTEIRe RAMERS
BUEEMBRR 2 FNEN - DECHE
RARELERPENBRARACZERES
FEE EZBEEMNTLIRPEMERQ
AIRZFEEZFRNEN 10% o — &
BESAARBEBEACEITERNTE
MBARZEARER -



26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
for a period of ten years commencing from 11th December, 2002
pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders passed on 11th
December, 2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to directors and eligible employees. Under the Scheme,
the Company may grant options to eligible employees and directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time to time,
grant share options to outside eligible advisors and consultants to
the Company and its subsidiaries at the discretion of its board of
directors.

The number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme is
subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company from

time to time;

(i) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme is not permitted to exceed 22,000,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at 6th January, 2003; and

(iii)  the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of such grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the higher of (i) the
average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the Company
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant; (ii) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
on the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary
shares of the Company.

Any options granted under the Scheme must be exercised during
such option period as may be determined and notified by the
directors of the Company, which shall not exceed 10 years from the
date of acceptance of the option.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its adoption.
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26. [ i # =t 8

BEZERER-_ZETE_F+_A+—
ARBMNEAREZER  ARAHME
st ([ZstE)) =TT =F
+ZA+—BRAEBTF TEBEHRE
EAHERERAEREB RN S E &
B o IRIEZATE - AR B R AR
FARBIREMBEARAEKEE RE
FURBARRRD - o RES
EZBMBERE AR RA TR L ER
BYFARBIREMEARNIINREE®
BRI ReERER o

RIBZAEBTTETZROHDEE XTI
R

(i)  BZ&T 8 R B AE ] HE Al B A
R RE R L B BT Y R R 1
HELR AXTHEBEBALQA
T BTN A Z30% :

(i) EREBSARRARESELIE
Al - RIRZ AT B R A A B R
EETETREELBERES R 2R
maaE - & H 1S B 22,000,000
R HER=_ZZT=F—HAKH
RARIBEEHITRAZ10% &

@iy PAE A — & N A gL A ] A 5%
THERESRZROHDEE  TF
BRAARNELABEHTR
KZ1% °

REMBEHBRERAINEEITR
BARE -TTEEHARRESTET
BERIASERTI&RE  WVARAEK
BRAREEZEERHNEEARZ A ZF
HURTHE : (AR AL BEBRAEL BB
ZWHE: RG)ARREBRAEE -

BEZTERE 2 EMBREARERD
REFETRAMZERESHERNT
- BHBMEATSERAEREREMNE
A 104 -

B % et Bl R PAZK - I B AR IR LA &
BT e B Rk -
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27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EREA R EE
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The Group manages its capital to ensure its subsidiaries will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
unsecured bank loan, and equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company, comprising share capital, share premium, investments
revaluation reserve, non-distributable reserve, merger reserve,
general reserve fund, translation reserve and accumulated profits as
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure annually.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company assess the
annual budget prepared by management of the Company. Based on
the proposed annual budget, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The directors of the Company also balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues of
the proposed floatation of the Company as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

7 8 T L R LA B AR LB A )
S5 AT - AR A AT R 2
ERERRRNREESS -

AEBZEARBRERY  BEER
RRTERRARBRERAARBEE
B2 (BRGEAMBHRRABEEZBRA
B aE REEMGFHEE  TADIKE
B APHE —REFEEER RER
wWEREN) -

ARBEEZBFEMNERRE - ERL
EHZz 8D ARAEEHARFE
EERBEFERELTINE RiERE
BFEERE  ARAEEREREARK
AREZHREAEBENRER - RAFE
EMBEBIRNRE  BEARR LT
THREBTHESXBERAES N
FHEERBELRARE -

28. € T &
) EMIAZES

2007 2006
—EELHE —EERF

HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BETT

Financial assets EMEE
Fair value through profit or loss BATFEFAER 543 —
Loans and receivables (including cash ERNERZE (8RS

and cash equivalents) RBE2EEY) 73,599 88,163
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESRMEE 1,483 1,438
Financial liabilities ERER

- E DN

Amortised cost

38,975




28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables,
investments held for trading, bank balances, trade and other
payables, and unsecured bank loans. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2007 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
Group only extends credit to customers based upon careful
evaluation of the customers’ financial conditions and credit
history.

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the Group's exposure to bad debts and

concentration risk is minimal.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 49% of the total
trade receivables as at 31st December, 2007 (2006: 60%)
was due from the Group’s five largest customers, respectively.
Those five largest customers are either reputable automotive
traders or agents with long business history with the Group.
Management perform periodic evaluations and customer visits
to ensure the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The historical experience in the collection of trade receivables
from the five largest customers falls within the expectation of
the directors.
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28. £t T & (&)
(b) BB EKEEEERBER

AEBzTEcRTABSREAHR
HERE EBURBZIEREEHAM
EWKIE - FHIEEERE - RIT
B BNESERAREMEN
RELRBEEMBETER - ZF2
MTAZHBREBRMERE -
TX#EIZEeBRITARB LR
R ERRzBE - EEEE
BRETBEBAR  ABRKRER
BB MR EUE E R 1

FEERK

AEBzITECREEBRREK
B 5 RN K E A E R RIE R R
RehkReEBW - WXZH7
REBTER -_TTLF+ A
ET—BZEE BMAXKEEBEE
BHEHEREREEMAARTZ
EREERBRAREERGREE
BEXRNEZEREE - BRIEE
ERRE AEEEEECDCKILK
heEEEEFEERE FEHK
REMEEEF - A RERRIUR
ETBHREABMER ~EEE
REBEEFEEPHBAREBE
EEMRRER  TEPRRHES -

o AEBEEMELEER
FEIEMER ERKRIEBAIYE 5 -
BREBTATKE SEEREH
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ERE AEBEAZZEERERE
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2
E
Bl 28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. £ I E (=
5 (b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) ¥BRABREEBFERHERK
> policies (continued) ()
gﬁj Credit risk (continued) EERR(E)
B Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the HRARIHEFREBEREEIR
5 counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by METRRSEENRZRT
international credit-rating agencies. HERTHABAZEERRAR -
Market risk T 15 & IR
(i) Foreign currency risk management () SMER g E R
While most of the Group’s operations are transacted BRERSE @ EBEBmE - &
in the functional currencies on the respective group EEARBOEBHBIIIANEE
entities, the Group undertakes certain transactions BHET EAEEEXET
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently RGLAINEEHE - REBIR
has not formulated any hedging policies against its e 37 gk HOE 8 R B ) E (T
exposure to currency risk. Yet, the Group still manages I K - AT - K&
its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the i B = ) BT SN E B X &
movement of the foreign currency rate. FEREIINERR -
The carrying amount of the Group’s monetary assets REBUIINEHBEZEEE
and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign EREBAERGEERZE
currencies at the balance sheet dates are as follow: HEEMNT

2007 2006
—EFEE ZTTHF

HK$’000 HK$’'000
BRI BETT

Assets BE

RMB AR 1,279

us$ ET 53,350

Yen HT 4,662

EUR B 7T 4,530

Liabilities afE

RMB AR _

uss$ ETT 23,095

EUR X T 350
Management monitors foreign exchange exposure EEEeER FHIERE  WTHRTE
as stated above and will consider hedging significant FrEEHFERIINERR

foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that
movement in foreign currency exchange rate
which will affect the Group’s financial results
and its cash flows. Management considers the
Group does not expose to significant foreign
currency risk as majority of its transactions are
either denominated in functional currency of the
Group’s subsidiaries or in US$. US$ financial assets and
financial liabilities are mainly held by two subsidiaries of
the Company using HK$ as their functional currencies.
Since HK$ is pegged to US$, relevant foreign currency
risk is minimal. Except US$, there were only insignificant
balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currency at the balance sheet dates as
disclosed above. A 5 per cent increase or decrease in
functional currencies against relevant foreign currencies
would not have a significant effect on the consolidated
income statement of the Group.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank balances and unsecured
bank loans. Bank balances and unsecured bank loans at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Details of the Group’s unsecured bank
balances and unsecured bank loans are disclosed in
notes 20 and 22 respectively.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arises. The
management consider the interest rate risk arising on
financial instruments is insignificant.
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INERBRIEESYEARAET
CHBEEREBRESRENR
SNESTERZEER - AR K
BORXRGURNERZHER
Blzee EM sk E L E -
ERERAAEBWTMEKX
INERBR o METFEZS
REERSHBEEFEAR
RAIRBAYE RENEEY
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Other price risks
The Group does not expose to significant price
risks on financial instruments. However, the Group
is exposed to commodity price risk. The Group
sources large quantities of metal materials which
include aluminium, zinc and magnesium alloys for its
manufacturing process. The Group currently does not
have a commodity future hedging policy. However,
management monitors its commodity price exposure
and will consider hedging significant commodity price
exposure should the need arises.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings.

The following tables detail Group’s contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows.
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28. &M T B (&

(b)

MBERAREEERRBR
(%)
i 15 B B ()

(i) EH B 1 E
AEBVEAXERe/ T
BZEERER - AM - K&
EEYmmERRR - K%
ExEEERAERERESD
%Mﬂ’@%ﬁ‘ﬁ&%%

ZKE@EEE%]”IEEH%

HEH PR -
EEAEFR%DDET%H %
THREFEERZSREHEKRNE
mE g R o

MEE & AR
REBRDHERARE  XEE
SEELREFRELRESEEY
BEREBEERRTR ZKFE I
BNAEE2EEMTEE® LA
'ﬂfﬁ@fﬂué/&@jZWE EIEE
TEEHHREEZBR

TRANRNEEFETESREBE

BHHEBREBER - ZFRBIOR
BAEBERAKERKEESRE
BzZRFEMZEREBERKER
REeERERHE RERBEREN
BEEAERERE -

Weighted
average
effective Total
interest 61to undiscounted Total
rate 0to 31to 365 days cash flows  carrying
MEEH  30days 60 days 61%Z 1-2years 2-5years #8538  amount
ERFZ 0Z308 31Z61H 365H 122% 2E5% BRERE RELE
%  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
At #¥Tn #ETn #H%Tr #ETz #BETx BETT HEETR
As at December 31, 2007 —EELE
+ A=1+-8H

Trade and other payables ~ FEFT & 58 H R K
ERHE - 6,840 3,026 - - — 9,866 9,866
Unsecured bank loans BEERBTER 5.0 — 19,49 — — — 19492 19,334
6,840 22,518 - — — 29,358 29,200

As at December 31,2006 RZ-ZET &
+-f=+-8

Trade and other payables B & SEH L L4
ERHE - 7,509 - - - — 7,509 7,509
Unsecured bank loans ERRETER 5.2 356 678 14,105 4,397 14,969 34,505 31,466
7,865 678 14,105 4,397 14,969 42,014 38,975

FHMETADUNGEEA ZMNERE
# o

Variable interest rate instruments is based on the rate
outstanding at the balance sheet date.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. @ T & (»)
(c) Fair value (0 ATEHE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are cHMEELRERBEZATEE
determined as follows: T
. the fair value of financial assets with standard terms e EBERERRRBHERE
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are BrnegmizEE S mME
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices; E2EMEMmSESRE
and BEEAFE: &
. the fair value of other financial assets and other e HiheomEELRHEMEREA
financial liabilities are determined in accordance with B2 RAFETIIRE KA B R
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted MR SER A E AL
cash flow analysis using prices or rates from observable REREPNALXZ—KBA
current market transactions as input. RZEBBBEAEE -
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERE RUBmMEANREH
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the KASEz2eMEERSMAR
financial statements approximate to their fair values. REEEENFEES -
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. EARKIE

2007 2006
—ETLE —TTRAF

HK$’000 HK$’'000
BRI BETT

BYME - BB REE

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition

of property, plant and equipment: MERHL :
Contracted for but not provided BEIAERR I BHRE
in the financial statements BE 29,701 31,268
30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. REHERIE

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding REER  AEERBESREEYWELT L
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- BRI EEE - RT3 F B2 8
cancellable operating leases for rented premises which fall due as Xtz REEBE&EREREAED
follows: Nk

2007 2006
—ETtE —TTAA
HK$°000 HK$'000
EWTRT  BETT

Within one year —F R 3,398

In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEELF (DREEREMTF) 8,086

Over five years AFULE — 1,557
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KEHERBREASEERESETHAE
for certain of its office premises and factory land and buildings. MEARKE tHREFENSHES - F
The average lease term is 13 years. Rentals are fixed and no BHHEEFHR13F M HETE - BE
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental MAAB ST RET L EMZHE -

payments.
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated in
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all
its eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years.

The Group is also required to make contributions to state-
management retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government based on a certain percentage of the monthly payroll
costs of the employees of Dongguan United, Everhope Industrial
Limited (“Everhope”) and United Castings. The Group has no
other obligations under the state-management retirement benefit
schemes in the PRC other than the contribution payable.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to the
relevant retirement benefit schemes are as follows:

MPF Scheme
State-management retirement benefit schemes

B

32. GOVERNMENT GRANT

During the year ended 31st December, 2005, the Group received
a government grant of approximately HK$8,335,000 in relation
to a piece of land use right situated in the PRC acquired by the
Group during that year. The amount has been deducted from the
carrying amount of the prepaid lease payments as set out in note
13. The amount is transferred to income in the form of reduced
amortisation charge over the term of the prepaid lease payments.
This policy has resulted in a credit to income in the current period
of HK$167,000 (2006: HK$167,000). As at 31st December, 2007,
an amount of HK$7,904,000 (2006: HK$8,071,000) remains to be
amortised.

B ARS8

31.

32.

B 1K 18 F 5t 8

AEEH _ZETTF+_A—HEARHE
BREMAREREBEZSE —HAHER
Beata((aERsa ) BRES
IR 45 58 1 A T8 2 71 &) 501 72 50 1
NEZHBERRAMN - BEZHEW
EEMBIUGERALRES HERAEENE
EORBE - REBESAENHRA
BELEEBEAAZBAAMBEENL X
SREt BIEH R - NEBEFRE 252
EEMNE—RETRREEIEHAFH
B EOR WA R E R R R F E
T E LR

A JRZA B B BUR & R BB R K
T8 RRZEFN  EREXBERA
AERDEREMBREREAFHRA
METEIL  (FHHX - AKEKF
ERETFENEERASEEHHRK
Sh - A BRI EMEREAE -

G Py - KR B AL BRIR HROE P AT Bl 4t
KEENT

2007
—ETts

2006
—EERF
HK$'000
BT T

HK$’000
BRI

183 208
1,455

1,663

B fEE) &
HE-_ZTZTAF+-_A=T—HLF
B AEERERFANBACAPEZ
— 8 T A BT B & 4B I
8,335,000 7T ° WA M FE13FT & - L E XK
BHEEBEMNHEEREEREBENR - %%
RIEREMEEREZAE AN
BEE T H 2 AR EREIA o B
B AEK167,000c (ZEERF D BE
167,00070) st AZREAFE KA - RZZE T
+tF+ZA=+—H8 ' #%7,904,0007T
(ZZZTRE . B18,071,000T) # W
ey o
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party transactions (a)
During the year ended 31st December, 2006, the Group
entered into a loan facility agreement with PC-steel Futures
0., Ltd., a company controlled by Mr. Lau, who was a
director and a substantial shareholder of the Company, his
directorship was ceased on 15th December, 2006.

The maximum loan facility amount was HK$50,000,000.
During the year ended 31st December, 2006, the Group drew
a loan of HK$16,000,000 and paid interest of HK$521,000.
The loan was unsecured, interest bearing at HIBOR plus 1.5%
per annum and fully repaid in 2006.

(b) Compensation of key management (b)
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

SRR
BIRREF

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

3B.EHEALHE

FREALRS
HE_ZTZF+_A=+—H
IEFE » N5 [E B PC-Steel Futures
Co., Ltd. 5] 37 B X @b & 13 #% - PC-
Steel Futures Co., Ltd. 8 &K A & &
EXRFTERRIEEED - EB
RZEEAF+ZA+HAREL
BEESES -

EXRBMmMEZERSBERAABE
50,000,0007C © F A - A& EiEH
5 116,000,000 T E 38+ W 3 48
#521,000 THIE - EAERAE
R B ARITRAZERZMS
BZ2FEMEFL  TERZZEET
NEFRNEE °

TEEEEREZHIE

FRAEERHEMIZEEEKXE
ZHEmT

2007 2006

ZEELH —EERF

HK$’000
BRI

HK$'000
BT

35
8,101

36

FrMZESZEREMEANRER

MSBLEETE -
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0o

34. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

34. KARIM B~ AT

Fffi &

RAFMBRAFEET

(RF=

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations
"ML/
HIREEME

el
[}
=
£
£
(%)
(@)
<
o
o
T
0
©
[T
()
=
el
[}
=
=
)

Issued and

fully paid share/
registered capital
BRTR
BRRSD/ZMEX

Proportion of nominal value of
issued/registered capital
held by the Company
FAABEERYT/
A 2 7 1R B

Indirectly
EE:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Principal activities
IEXH
Directly

Dongguan United (note i)
R EH (FE)

Everhope
=

United Metals Company
Limited
BNEXERAA

United Metals Asset
Management Co., Ltd.

United Non-Ferrous (H.K.)
Limited

United Metals Asset
Management (H.K.)
Co., Ltd.

United Non-Ferrous

(Overseas) Limited

United Non-Ferrous
Sdn. Bhd.

United Shanghai (note i)
&L (D)

United Castings (note i)
RERE (M)

PRC
!

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong
ABRAER/ER

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong
EERRHE/EE

Malaysia
SREE

PRC
T E

PRC
TE

Registered capital
HK$40,000,000

EMBRA
740,000,000

Ordinary HK$2
ERERAELIT

Ordinary HK$1,602
LRREE6027T

Ordinary US$1
TEk1ET

Ordinary HK$1,602
LERES6027

Ordinary HK$2
LTERER LT

Ordinary US$17,622
ERER1762ET

Ordinary RM2
@RS

Registered capital
US$12,000,000
(note i)

AR
12,000,000% 7
(WaEin)

Registered capital
HK$18,000,000
(note i)

HRA
7 %18,000,0007C
(P &)

100

2007
TG

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Die casting and trading
of metal products

EERHECRED

Die casting and trading

of metal products
EERHEELBER

Trading of metal
products

HETBEM

Investment holding
&R

Provision of
administrative services

RATBRT

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding and
trading of
metal products
REABRRHE
¢EEm

Inactive
EmEH

Die casting and trading
of metal products

EERHECRER
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34. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(i) Dongguan United, United Shanghai and United Castings are established in the
PRC as wholly foreign owned enterprises.

(ii) As at 31st December, 2007, the capital of United Shanghai and United Castings
were paid up as to US$3,870,000 and HK$17,750,000, respectively.

(iii) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

3. KNAIMBARFE @

Bt 3

(@)

(i)

(iii)

REBF HMELERRZMBE/ESD
BRI EIIERE -

W_ZELE+-_A=+—0 ®ELSE
RREREZHARAE S 5 43,870,000
7T & B #17,750,0007T °

EAFEFE  LETMANEQFET
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Financial Summary 882

Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for five years ended

31st December, 2007:

RESULTS

Revenue

Profit (loss) before
taxation

Income tax (expense)
credit

Profit (loss) for the year

Earnings (loss) per share
— basic (HK cents)

U a8

B B B A
(&)
Frg B (F )
%
FRER (BE)

Fhar (ER)
—EARCGEMW)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable
to equity holders
of the Company

ZANUNEIE: £
FA ARG
R ot

2003

—TE=F
HK$'000
BT T

150,545

27,713

(1,959)
25,754

HK$ 000

&I

161,191

ALAEFEZMBHE
For the year ended 31st December,
BE+-_RA=+—BHLHEE
2004 2005 2006
—ZETWNFE —TTRFE ZTERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTE BT BETR
154,584 186,621 242,831
9,371 10,550 14,170
(957) (221) (754)
8,414 10,329 13,416
3.8 4.7
EEREGRE
As at 31st December,
W+Z-ZA=+—H
2004 2006
== TTHE Z—ZTZTREF
HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T ﬁé‘iﬁ’?ﬁ /Etd%g:*:ﬁ
200,377 211,664 256,606
(35,289) (36,310) (63,519)
165,088 175,354 193,087

NTRASEHE —_ZTLF+ -_A=+—

2007
—ETLE
HK$°000
BT

(4,394)

2007
—FEtH
HK$’000
BT T

240,890
(51,216)

189,674
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